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MR. PFLAUM Good norni ng, everyone, and
t hank you for attending. M name is Steven Pflaum
|'ma partner in the Chicago firm of Neal, Gerber &
Ei senberg, and I'"'mthe chair of the Illinois Supreme
Court Statutory Court Fee Task Force.

We are here this nmorning, of course, on a
Zoom tel econference for the second public hearing
that the task force has held. The purpose of this
public hearing is for the task force nmenbers to
receive comments, testinony by interested
I ndi vi dual s and organi zati ons and agencies with
respect to the draft task force report that we
circulated a little bit nore than 45 days ago.

In terms of where we go from here, the
task force will be considering the testinony that we
receive today as well as the written comments t hat
were submtted | ast week, and we appreci ate those
who took the time to provide the very thoughtful
comments that we've received. W are going to give
them very careful consideration. | anticipate that
we will nmake some revisions and tweaks to the draft
report that you've seen in |light of the testinmony
t hat we have received.

And then ultimately, sonmetime early this
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fall, the task force anticipates submtting its
report to the Illinois Suprene Court and to the
I1'linois General Assenbly for its consideration. As
t hose on this live stream are aware and those
watching it later undoubtedly as well are aware,
that the task force draft recommendati ons do include
| egi sl ative proposals as well as sone proposed
revisions to the Illinois Supreme Court rules.
Those are submtted for consideration by the
I ndi vi dual s advised with the authority to act on
t hem

So the format for today then is we --
t hose who expressed an interest in testifying today

have signed up. They're here on a Zoom as opposed

to through the live stream and going to -- each
speaker will have 10 m nutes, but | do want to --
there will be an opportunity for the task force

menbers to ask questions of the speakers; and, you
know, there will be additional time allotted as
needed, especially if any questions that m ght be
received.

So our first speaker --

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: -- Judge Ortiz to

be at hone.
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MR. PFLAUM Okay. Are we ready? Is that
okay. Judge Ortiz was scheduled to be our first.
He's here, right, Judge?

MR. ORTIZ: | am here.

MR. PFLAUM  Qur first speaker this
norning i s Judge Jorge Oti z.

Judge, welcone, and if you'd introduce
yoursel f, and thank you for participating.

MR. ORTI Z: Thank you, M. Pflaum and
good norning, everyone. | serve in the 19th
Judicial Circuit in Lake County, and my current
assignment is in juvenile court; and let me just say
the views |'m about to express are solely ny views,
not those of the 19th Judicial Circuit.

And so | took an assignment in juvenile
court about two years ago, and | quickly noticed
that the vast majority of the parties in court are
represented by the public defender's office; and I
al so quickly noticed that there are several fees and
assessnents routinely inposed on these people even
t hough they are indigent.

And one day | began researching fee and
assessnment waivers and was surprised to |earn that

there is no such provision for juvenile court cases;
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and | believe this is fundamentally unfair, and it
undul y burdens indigent youth and their famlies.
And frankly, very little is collected by way of

t hese fees and assessnents, and | routinely waive or
reduce themin many cases.

Courts and counties do not rely upon these
fees or assessnents to sustain or support operations
and nor should they, and in ny view they should be
elimnated at a mnimum for indigent parties if not
entirely. These parties should work on
rehabilitation wi thout being saddled with onerous
fees and costs.

So thank you.

MR. PFLAUM  Thank you, Judge.

Does anyone have any questions for Judge
Otiz?

MR. SLAUGHTER: Yeah, hi.

MR. PFLAUM Representative Slaughter, go
ahead. Did you have a question?

MR. SLAUGHTER: Yes. ' m sorry.

Judge Ortiz, thank you so very much for
taking sone tine to be with us this norning. Could
you go into a little bit, just a little bit nore?

You were articulating how, and one of the things I
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was concerned about, was was the revenue fromthe

fines and fees being utilized in any way, shape, or
formfor operations. | believe that you said that
they weren't. |Is that accurate? And so where do --

where does the revenue --

MR. ORTIZ: Well, and I'll just speak for
my circuit. You know, very little is collected,
frankly; and we -- and | wish | had the figures for

you because | ast year we | ooked at this because sone
of our county board nmenbers expressed an interest in
having -- seeing that these fees are waived, and
very little is actually coll ected.

So you m ght have the detention fees.
You' ve got all these other fees. Public defender
fees being assessed when these folks are indigent to
begin with being represented by the public defender.
So very little by way of these fees or assessnents
I's collected; and frankly, you know, these fees
shouldn't be relied upon to sustain the operations.

Now, | understand that there's certainly
many costs attendant to running a juvenile detention
center or running juvenile court in general; but,
you know, again, we are tal king about the vast

maj ority of these people being indigent. And so
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we're setting themup for failure if you're going to
be entering, ultimately entering judgnents agai nst
them or their parents who are indigent. |Instead of
havi ng them concentrate on rehabilitation, you know,
on inmproving thensel ves, what we see is a | ot of
t hese fol ks are saddled with these judgnents
ultimately which in some jurisdictions |I understand
that collection efforts begin agai nst these folks.

So I"'msorry | can't answer your question
specifically. And I know that, you know, your being
a legislator, you have to address ways to fund these
types of operations; but again, frankly, if we're
about rehabilitating these mnors and providing them
a fresh start in life, we should not be saddling
themw th these fees, especially if they are
I ndi gent .

MR. SLAUGHTER: Judge Ortiz, you answered
t he question quite well. Again, thank you for your
service and for being on with us this norning.
Thank you.

MR. ORTI Z: Thank you very nuch

MR. PFLAUM Does any -- do any other task
force menbers have any questions for Judge Otiz?

| do have one. Judge, the task force's
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draft report does recommend that |egislation be
enact ed abolishing assessnments and fees in juvenile
del i nquency cases but preserving juvenile's
liability for restitution in particular, and the
task force recommends that the general -- at | east
the draft report, our draft report recomended that
t he General Assenbly pass legislation in the form of
a pending bill known as Senate Bill 3621.

Do you know the extent to which that bill
I's consistent with your -- with the views that you
j ust expressed? Do you join in that support? O
per haps you're not famliar with that bill.

MR. ORTIZ: No, | did reviewthe bill, and
It is, it is pretty consistent with nmy views.

Wth respect to restitution, you know,
obviously victinms need to be made whol e; and
sonetinmes the orders for restitution are quite
significant. However, the court nust make an
assessnment as to whether or not that particul ar
m nor or famly has the present ability to pay the
restitution. So |l think in terms of victinms, |
t hi nk that perhaps there should still be a provision
to allow for restitution to be ordered.

MR. PFLAUM  Ckay. Thank you, Judge.
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MR. ORTI Z: Thank you, M. Pflaum

MR. PFLAUM Hearing no other questions
for Judge Ortiz, our next speaker is Angelica
Jimenez fromthe National Center for Youth Law.

Ms. Jinmenez, | want to thank you both for
your testinony today and also for the witten
comments that were submtted by the National Center.
The floor is yours.

Whoops, you're on nute.

MS. JI MENEZ: Thank you for letting me
know.

Good norning, Chairman Pflaum  Thank you
so much for the opportunity to speak today. M nane
I's Angie Jinmenez, and |'ma senior attorney with the
Nati onal Center for Youth, and I"'malso an Illinois
native.

We strongly support the task force
recommendation to abolish fines and fees in juvenile
court in the formof Senate Bill 3621. W want to
bring attention to egregi ous practices that our
youth are subjected to when charged with nunici pal
ordi nance violations. W urge the task force to
consi der the harnms adm nistrative adjudications

cause and advocate for the abolition of fines and
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fees in the system

First, ProPublica's recent investigations
identified a disturbing pattern of ticketing
students for school -based offenses. Students were
cited for conduct as mnor as littering, making | oud
noi ses, or using offensive words. Horrifyingly,
reporters found that over 11,800 tickets were issued
over the course of three school years to children as
young as eight. Significant racial disparities were
al so found with nearly 20 percent of tickets being
given to Bl ack students who conprise only 9 percent
of the student popul ati on.

Youth are forced to navigate
guasi -judi cial proceedings commonly held at police
stations and village halls w thout -- before | awers
and not judges w thout the right to counsel. They
often plead guilty in order to pay with significant
variation across nunicipalities. Mst youth had
al ready been puni shed by their schools, sone even
expel l ed, and now forced to pay hefty fines and
f ees.

Second, these assessnents underm ne and
directly contradict youth rehabilitation. Youth

unable to pay aren't learning a |l essen. They face
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severe stress that destroys their trust in the
fairness of the system which can negatively i npact
conpliance. These youth are forced to financially
rely on their famlies, if their famlies can help,
or find a way to pay thensel ves, de-prioritizing

t heir education.

I n contrast, youth whose famlies can
afford to pay learn there's no neani ngful
consequence. As a result, as the task force has
found, holding famlies jointly |liable can harmthe
famlies at a time significant inportance.

Third, this practice fails to consider the
devel opment needs -- devel opnmental needs by
puni shing youth in the same manner as adults. The
task force cites DOJ recommendati ons for speci al
practices for youths' best interest. Admnistrative
adj udi cations routinely assess fees and fines
wi t hout consideration of ability to pay.

Fourth, municipal fines are nost
frequently assessed against |ow income famlies and
youth of color. The task force found that youth of
color are nore likely to be arrested and detai ned
than their white peers. This is the sane for

adm ni strative adjudications.
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Low i ncome famlies may be forced to
choose between paying these assessment or paying
necessities. No famly should be forced to make
that choice. Miltiple famlies we spoke with had no
i dea how they were going to pay the fees and fines
even if they were given nore time to pay.

| f youth are unable to pay, they m ght
face additional costs, continued court oversight,
and possi ble contenpt charges. These youth end up
payi ng even nore in the end with devastating
consequences to their future opportunities.

Finally, ending assessnments would benefit
muni ci palities. A funding structure that is heavily
relying upon revenues from assessnents of |ow income
famlies is unsustainable. In fact, it is likely
t hat counties would actually experience cost savings
If they elimnate these fees i nmposed on yout h.

While it appears that the counties don't
collect -- don't collect and don't use coll ection
agencies for juvenile court assessnents, in
adm ni strative adjudications they do. Now, states
t hat have elimnated fees and fines in juvenile
court have found that these revenue raising tools

were actually cost prohibitive. Thus, abolishing
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fines and fees is the best course of action for
everyone invol ved.

I n conclusion, we applaud the task force
for your work to inprove our courts by addressing
t he unjust barriers that fines and fees create.

Thank you.

MR. PFLAUM Thank you, Ms. Jinenez.

Any questions fromtask force nmenbers?

MR. FIELLO.  Yes, | have a question.

MR. PFLAUM  Judge Fiello, go ahead.

MR. FIELLO. Do you happen to know whet her
t his using ordinance violations against children in
school, whether that is something that is new or
just newly discovered?

MS. JIMENEZ: | believe it's newy
di scovered. Senate Bill 100 that was enacted a few
years ago really ainmed to elimnate that practice in
school s by prohibiting the schools thenselves from
I ssuing these fines and fees, issuing tickets on
students. However, what they are seeing in practice
after the enactnent of this lawis that they are
working with police officers and the police officers
are doing that. So they're not violating the |aw

however, they find there's another way to do it. So
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It's nore recent in ternms of howit's being
adm ni st ered.

And the senate bill also really focused on
comng up with alternatives and really focusing on
t he students' needs. So we are seeing that this
trend noving forward towards reform we're seeing
sonme steps backwards.

MR. FIELLO. Thank you.

MS. JI MENEZ: Thank you.

MR. PFLAUM  Any ot her questions?

Ms. Jinenez, do you have -- is there draft
| egi slation that's been suggested that would
i npl ement the nmeasure that you are advocating for?

MS. JI MENEZ: We've been working with our
partners on Senate Bill 3621, so we have been

working with the entire coalition, the Debt Free

Justice coalition of Illinois. And so in our
conversations to be -- as we said, we strongly
support the bill; and if it is possible to include

that specifically, and we understand t hat
restitution is not part of that, but if municipal
ordi nance viol ations could be, really because we
believe it goes to the essence of the bill and what

the bill is aimed to address, that that would be the
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way .

So we are commtted to working with our
partners, and we have been in conmunication with
themto have that as a possible provision to the
bill once it gets reintroduced in the next
| egi sl ati ve session.

MR. PFLAUM |Is there draft |egislative
| anguage that's been --

MS. JIMENEZ: We started -- yes. |I'm
sorry. W have started working on draft |egislative
| anguage. We just need to -- we need to pass that
on for review

MR. PFLAUM Thank you.

MS. JI MENEZ: Thank you.

MR. PFLAUM  Any ot her questions for
Ms. Jinmenez?

Thank you for appearing and for your
testi nony.

MS. JI MENEZ: Thank you.

MR. PFLAUM -- testinony.

Qur next speaker is Pastor Norma Patterson
fromthe Debt Free Justice Illinois coalition.

Again, | want to thank the coalition for its witten

comments which the task force is considering as
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wel | ; and, Pastor Patterson, we appreciate you

com ng today to testify. Good norning. The floor

IS yours.
MS. PATTERSON: Good norning, everyone.
| " m Pastor Norma Patterson, and |I'm a
menber of this task force. |[|'ma pastor in East

St. Louis, Good Shepherd of Faith United Church of

Christ, and I'malso a retired teacher from teaching

in St. Louis public schools for 25 years, 16 years

as a teacher in the classroom 9 years as an

adm nistrator; and |'ve seen children in m ddle

school and in high school targeted because of that

pi peline that extends from school to prison. People

say it's not there, that it's invisible, but I'm

here to tell you that it's real, it's docunented on

a regul ar basis, and certain children are targeted.
As a result of my experience in the school

district and ny experience as a pastor in

East St. Louis with church nenbers suffering from

t hese fees and fines because their children are

targeted and they are responsi ble for those kids --

and sometinmes they are not the parents; sonetines

they're the grandparents -- our comunity organizers

have been at the forefront of this coalition
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canpaign to end juvenile fees and fines by
connecting with inpacted youth and famlies in
I1'linois. On behalf of our comunity organizers,
provide my testinmony and full support of the task
force findings and recomendati ons under New
Initiative 3 regardi ng assessnent and fines in
juvenil e delinquency cases.

The Gamaliel Network, and |I'm a president
of Gamaliel of Illinois, is a faith-based
multiethnic, nultiracial grassroots organization
whose m ssion is to train ordinary people, primarily
| ow i ncome people, fromcomunities of color to
effectively participate in the political
environment. The social econom c decisions that
affect their lives oftentinmes are overl ooked because
t he people don't know what to | ook for. |If they're
not invited to participate in their lives and what
happens to them then we don't even know what's
going on in the comunities, nost people don't know.

We are a part of central southern Illinois
and nostly the netro east community. These are the
counties that we are connected with. These youth
and their famlies that are affected by the juvenile

justice system are in Cass County, Morgan County,
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Sanganon County, Macon County, Madi son County,

St. Clair County, Mnroe County, Randol ph County,
Jackson County, and Franklin County. Sonetines
because we're in the |lower part of the state of
Illinois we are totally ignored, but we are on board
with the bill that we want to push, we want this
bill passed, because our children are suffering at a
hi gher rate than nost children in other counties.

Qur community organi zers have been working
on the canpaign to elimnate juvenile fees and fines
advanci ng Senate Bill 3621 since Novenber of 2021.
Over the course of four nonths |ast spring, we
i nterviewed about fifty inpacted youth through
one-on-one neetings in the counties nmentioned
earlier.

We want to uplift the follow ng youth
stories when extrenely -- I'"msorry, which
exenplifies and harnms and | ong-term consequences
that the youth and their parents face as a result of
fees and fines inposed upon them The youth wish to
remai n anonynous, so the nanmes of the youths of
t hese anecdotes have been changed to preserve their
anonymty.

Jay, who is now a 17 year olds has been --
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17-year-old has been involved in the county's
juvenil e system for several years. His first
contact with juvenile justice system was at the age
of 13, and he was fined for the incident. His
parents had to pay the fine off, and it was a huge
strain on his famly. Jay informed that his parents
couldn't sleep fromthe financial burden.

There are 27 housing projects in the city
of East St. Louis. No other city in the state of
I1'linois with a popul ation of 27,000 has 27 -- |I'm
sorry, 27 housing projects. Who has that in their
community? And so the children are |unped together.
They go to school together. They go to the play to
t he park together. They don't have any outside
connections other than each other. What | aws, what
government allows that to happen? 1|'ve been to
ot her states, and | don't know anywhere where |'ve
seen that happen.

Dennis is now 16 years old but was
I nvolved in a traffic accident when he was 15 years
ol d. He was arrested in a county, one of the ones
that | naned, after the accident for not having a
| icense. He received a $1700 fine which he and his

famly are still paying off in nonthly install nments

Veritext Lega Solutions
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a year later, and they still haven't paid it off.
Does that sound famliar, people who went to coll ege
payi ng student | oans 40 years, 20 years and stil
haven't paid them off?

Dennis can't obtain a |icense because of
this incident. He has to work in order to pay off
the fine; and not being able to obtain a |license has
added chronic stress with his comute, his needs for
wor k, and his school comm tnments.

The majority of the youth in Illinois
juvenil e systemare [ ow income youth of color, which
means that the youth and famlies of color bear a
di sproportionate burden in the assessnment of
juvenile fees and fines across Illinois. Through
the interviews we conducted, we |earned that
grandparents al so bear the financial burdens of
assessnments since they're often the only caregivers
for many children and teenagers across I|llinois.

Juvenil e assessnents can amount to over
t housands of dollars; and even with nonthly paynent
pl ans, these financial burdens create a significant
| ong-term financial and social chall enges for
| npacted youth and famlies. Low income famlies of

col or end up paying much nmore with exact sanme
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of fenses and charges in juvenile court than their
Caucasi an counterparts and nore privil eged
counterparts pay. It is time to end such unjust and
unequi tabl e practices in the state of Illinois
because fees and fines only hurt youth and fam i es.

For all these reasons, we strongly support
the task force recommendation to abolish assessnents
and fines in juvenile delinquency cases by enacting
| egi sl ati on substantially in the formof SB --
Senate Bill 3621. |[|'m a preacher, you guys, so |
can't just read it. | have to testify and preach to
you a little bit. OCkay? Thank you.

MR. PFLAUM  Thank you, Pastor Patterson.
We do appreciate that.

Anyone have any questions?

Hearing none, again, thank you very much
for your testinony.

Qur next speaker this morning, Retired
Judge George Tinberl ake.

Judge Ti nber | ake. You're on mute,
somet hing we've all experienced during the age of
Zoom There we go.

MR. Tl MBERLAKE: Oh, thank you. Thanks a

| ot .
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Thank you for the sernon, Ms. Patterson.

That's exactly the kind of story that needs to be

told throughout the state of Illinois, and I'm from
southern Illinois. 1've been retired for a | ong
time, but the subject is one that | have exam ned in
many ways -- as chief judge, how to manage review

hearings; deal with the other nenmbers of the court
systemto collect these fines -- and because of that
experience, both as a chief but much nore so |I spent
15 years as an associ ate judge, and during that tinme
this is the call | got to do a |ot.

So tell me, if we spend an entire court
day havi ng peopl e show up because they owe fines,
fees, costs, and restitution, what do those
resources cost? Moire so, let's tal k about what
could be inportant financially in the justice system
and that is restitution. Here's a situation that |
often encountered and one of these being personal.
|'ve been in the real estate business investnents
for a long, long time. A young man high on nmeth
burned down one of mnmy garages. So |'minsured but
had a $500 deductible. So the fine -- rather, the
sentence for this young man included fines, fees,

costs, and restitution.
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The state attorney is a friend of m ne and
a person | respect. After or towards the end of the
young man's probation period, they dism ssed the
case. Fines, fees, and costs were paid.

Restitution was not.

So the financial part of the justice
system ought to be to nake people whole if they've
had a real loss. Now, that varies all over the
pl ace, but the question really is how nuch noney are
we spending in court resources to recover how nuch
noney that is |likely never to be paid, just as
Reverend Patterson has said. That happens in the
adult court, of course, and sonetimes for good
reason.

For juveniles, | suggest this is nuts.

What we're trying to do in the justice systemis
repair the harmthat a child has caused to anot her.
Restitution may well be the only thing that should
be ordered in terns of fines, fees, and costs, but
let's go farther than that. The court resources,
the time for defendants, the time for attorneys, the
time for judges, clerks, bailiffs, and all of that,
judge that against the harm cost -- caused to an

I ndi vi dual who's been ordered to pay restitution and
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doesn't get it, either because sonmeone refuses or
because sonmeone sinmply doesn't have the education
and job skills to be able to go forward. W ought
to be concentrating on that sort of stuff. If we're
going to stop crine, then you have to intervene in
people's lives in a way that's neaningful to them
Restitution can do that.

Several of you have heard ny speeches
about restorative justice. This is the point right
here where we can consider that restorative justice
Is a -- not a replacenent for but the forumin which
restitution is determ ned. Not by us, not by the
system rather by that person or conpany or whonever
has been harmed has the opportunity to say, okay, |
want you to pay nme a thousand dollars. Kid says,
don't have a thousand dollars, you know. | work
after school and make 30 bucks a week.

| nstead, restorative justice gives the
opportunity for that person who has been victim zed,
who has been harnmed, to speak directly to the person
who caused that harm and then work out their
I ndi vi dual arrangements as to what are you going to
do for me. |'ve been harmed; | want you to hear it;

and if you're sincere, here's what you could do to
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help ne. Doesn't nean wite a check. Doesn't nean
t hat we got to see each other every Friday for the
next ten years of our |lives because you owed noney.
| nstead, let's get to a point where
justice is served at a |ocal |evel on a personal
| evel, not on a system | evel, because the system
hasn't done a very good job of carrying this
t hrough. If you survey the amount of noneys owed to
circuit clerks throughout the state of Illinois, it
w || boggle your mnd. The opportunity to recover
that entire anmount is infinitesimal. The anount
that you're going to wite off because finally
sonmebody dies or because the judge realizes it's
never going to be paid because the guy isn't
capable, let's go to the justice involved in this.
And what's just been said today, what's
bei ng consi dered by the court, what's being
considered in the legislature is just that. Let's
make victims whole. Let's help offenders progress
beyond what ever behavior or life condition created.
That's justice. | thought that's what this system
was about, and | think that's what we strive to do
every day.

Thanks.
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MR. PFLAUM  Thank you, Judge Ti nberl ake.

Do any task force nmembers have any
guestions for the Judge?

Thank you very nmuch for your testinony --

MR. Tl MBERLAKE: Thank you.

MR. PFLAUM -- thoughtful.

Our next speaker is former Representative
St eve Andersson, a menber of the -- is he here?

MR. ANDERSSON: | am here.

MR. PFLAUM Gr eat . Good to you see,
Represent ati ve.

MR. ANDERSSON: Thank you.

MR. PFLAUM  Menmber of the original
Statutory Court Fee Task Force. Welcone.

MR. ANDERSSON: Thank you very nuch. As
you said, nmy nane is Steve Anderson. For the
record, |'ve been a licensed attorney for 30 years,
about the first 20 of which |I was also a | ocal
prosecutor. So | spent a great deal of ny tinme, at
| east once a week, in our local traffic courts in
Kane County actually doing a | ot of the work that
we're tal king about here today including suspending
a |lot of people's drivers' licenses for not show ng

up, entering ex parte judgnents for people not
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show ng up, and creating part of the problemthat |
think we are here to address.

| really wanted to conpli ment
Judge Ti nberl ake's commentary about the inability to
collect on a |lot of these inposed fees. That is the
literal truth. As you nmentioned, |I'm a nmenber of
the original task force, and it was a pleasure to
serve with several of you who are on the current
task force, and | was the sponsor of the CTAA in
short.

So this is a area that is near and dear to
my heart, and | want to thank the nenbers of the
task force for your hard work on this. Wen |I had
t he opportunity to review your draft report, |
really was inpressed. You' ve taken what we started
with and really launched it to the next level. So
my conplinments to you on what | see as an excell ent
first draft and an excellent debate about where we
go in the future. So thank you very much for that.

| al so am speaking specifically though as
a | obbyist with the Chicago Jobs Council. The
Chi cago Job Council's m ssion surrounds renoving
| npedi ments to work opportunities; and in this case

specifically, we are dealing with the issue of
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driver's |license suspensions and how that affects
people's lives in general. W also conprise a
transit table which is conmprised of actually many of
t he organi zations that you're hearing fromtoday or
who have received testinony to advocate for this

| ssue.

Specifically what we are dealing with is
to outline our position on the harns of fees to the
| owest incone people, specifically fees resulting
froma failure to appear in traffic court. At
present, over 100, 000 people in Illinois have
suspended licenses for failure to appear in traffic
court. These suspensions often are just an
extension of the traffic ticket debt collection
process. This is because even though a driver's
| i cense suspension is initially inposed after a
person's failure to appear in traffic court, many
circunstances, many court clerk systens thereafter
al so enter the ex parte judgnent, and then the
Secretary of State cannot reinstate the |license
until the ticket is paid and they go back to court
to seek reinstatenment. As a result in many pl aces
failure to appear suspensions becone failure to pay

suspensions in real practice.
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Li ke other debt-driven suspensions, the
real -world i npact of a failure to appear suspension
devastates comunities of color. According to our
research data, the top ten ZIP codes in the
Chi cagol and region with the nost failure to appear
suspensi ons have predom nantly Black and Latino
residents. Nine of those ZIP codes have a majority
of Bl ack residents, and one of them has a mpjority
of Latino residents, all with above average poverty
| evel s.

M nority workers are hit the hardest.
Only 16.2 percent of Latino and 19.7 percent of
Bl ack workers can work from hone conpared to
30 percent of white workers. This means workers
needing driver's licenses are the nost likely to
have |icenses suspended for failure to appear.

In many states fines and fees to fund | aw
enforcement distort police priorities and ultimtely
| npede public safety. In cities where police
departnments receive nore funding from fees, police
solve violent crines at a significantly |ower rate.
You heard that correct. According to our research,
a 1 percent increase in debt-based revenues, noney

fromfines, fees, and forfeitures, was associ at ed
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with a 3.7 percent decrease in violent crine

cl earance rates. In other words, or perhaps nore
simply put, the focus of |aw enforcement shifts from
what their main purpose would be which would be to
clear those violent crime rates instead to

col l ections.

Fines and fees that often underline a
failure to appear driver's |license suspensi on put
mnority workers in really an inpossible situation.
They either choose to drive illegally because they
have i nadvertently m ssed a traffic court appearance
date or they |lose their enploynment and subsequently
their ability to live. It really becones a spiral
downward, if you will. In fact, if they take that
ri sk and they drive while suspended, oftentinmes that
means they're now receiving another ticket for
driving while |icense suspended, which is nore
serious and nore significant. So you'll see a
spiral downwards anongst peopl e because they make an
| npossi bl e choice, the choice either to work or not
wor k based on one incidental failure to appear.

We believe those failures to appear, by
the way, are at the root of the system which is that

it's conplicated and it's difficult for people who
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are not famliar with the court systemto al ways
make their court dates or to understand exactly when
and where they are. Anpbng our survey respondents
served by Workforce Devel opment adult education
prograns across the state, 25 percent have
experi enced a suspended or revoked license. On the
one hand, our governnment services are trying to help
get people enployed, there's no doubt about that;
but on the exact opposite hand we are using the
Secretary of State's office to hold them back
unnecessarily. Suspending driver's |licenses for
failure to appear does not pronote public safety or
hel p collect unpaid fines and fees for traffic
vi ol ati ons.

Suspensi ons hurt people's ability to earn
a living and find housing, which is bad for the
busi ness comunity and ultimately bad for the entire
governmental system Failure to appear in court for
driver's license suspensions for fines and fees
should not dictate a person's ability to work,
provide for thenselves and their famly, and live.

We believe state |l egislative and court
reforms can restore integrity to the crimnal

justice system and align fees and fines with the
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system s broader goals. Reforns are urgently needed
to protect low inconme famlies from being trapped in
rui nous debt and people from being penali zed,
sometimes incarcerated, sinply because they can't
pay court fines and fees.

Specifically to your report, our comments
here today are directed at your New Initiative
No. 4, which is debt collection. W would ask you
specifically to consider adopting House Bill 5588,
that's House Bill 5588, Representative Nick Smth is
t he sponsor, into your recomendations. It
el i m nates suspensions for failure to appear in
court. While this is not specifically a fee, it
will result in the reduction of the fees needed to
reinstate drivers' licenses at a |ater point; and as
| indicated, if our systemis designed to allow
people to address their justice systemissues and
still allow themto work, we are in a much better
pl ace.

Al so renenber, the only renedy for a
failure to appear is not a driver's |license
suspension. Sonetinmes when the police stop an
I ndi vidual, they will give them what anmounts to

personal recogni zance where they do not ask for
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anything, or they'll post a statutory cash bond for
t hat sane issue. In neither of those cases, so two
out of three cases, those people will not receive a

driver's license suspension. But only in one case
somewhere sonmeone posts a driver's license will they
suffer this significant penalty. So we're asking

t hat things be aligned nore to what | would
characterize as the nore common col |l ection nmethod.

Finally, and this is a separate item and a
personal item so |I'm now not speaking for the
Chi cago Jobs Council, speaking only for nyself as
t he sponsor, is | would ask that you, as you
i ndicate in your report, advocate for the repeal of
t he sunset. When we created the original CTAA, that
was nmy solution to getting a |ot of different
organi zations on board. There was a great deal of
anxi ety over how nmuch of a change we were maki ng and
whet her we m ght have m scal cul ated the inpact of
t he various changes in fees.

And so our suggestion, nmy suggestion
honestly, was let's create a sunset. W did, that
got the bill passed, but what we've seen and what
you' ve seen since then is that it has not

dramatically inpacted either positively or
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negatively the variety of different agencies. So
with that being the case, the reason for the sunset
no | onger exists. So | fully support your
recommendation in that and ask that as this noves
forward that that remain there and that we renove
that sunset. This is not -- this is not sonething
t hat needs a sunset any further.

And with that, | thank you for the
opportunity to speak and, of course, |I'm happy to
answer any questi ons.

MR. PFLAUM Thank you, Representative.

Does anyone have any questions for
Represent ati ve Andersson?

MR. SLAUGHTER: M. Chair.

MR. PFLAUM Go ahead. Yes.

MR. SLAUGHTER: Representative Andersson,
Retired, thank you so very nuch for being with us
this morning. | also want to just thank you and
we're so grateful for the time and energy and effort
that you put into this subject matter.

Often throughout your testinony you were
referring to some data and reports and statistics.
Can you just make sure that the task force has what

you were -- what you were reading from and
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referencing. And | think it's very, very val uable
obviously to be able to I ean on the data and the
stats. So | know all the menmbers appreciate that
approach as well.

So thank you, Steve.

MR. ANDERSSON: It's ny pleasure. W do
have that all, and we will submt it. Thank you
very much for that opportunity.

MR. PFLAUM  Thank you. No, we wel conme
that, and that could be submtted online.

Thank you, Representative Slaughter, for
t hat suggesti on.

Any ot her questions for Representative
Ander sson?

Agai n, thank you.

Our next speaker this nmorning is Brian
Gaughan from an organi zati on known as LEAP.

M . Gaughan.

MR. GAUGHAN: Good norning. Thanks for
allowing ne to speak to you fol ks today. Greetings,
Chair Steven Pflaum and nenbers of the Statutory
Court Fee Task Force. | speak here today in favor
of the proposed Initiative 3 because | believe that

ending fines and fees for mnors would strengthen
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police community trust and | ower recidivismanongst
m nors.

My nanme is Brian Gaughan, and |I'm wei ghi ng
in on this issue as a retired Illinois |aw
enforcement officer and as a speaker for Law
Enf orcenment Action Partnership, also known as LEAP.
LEAP is a nonprofit group of police officers,
prosecutors, judges, and other crimnal justice
prof essi onals who speak of our experience from
within the crimnal justice system QOur mssion is
to make communities safer by advocating for the
focus of |aw enforcenment resources to be placed on
the greatest threats to public safety and working
towards healing police community rel ations.

As a police officer, |I saw firsthand that
our young people needed support and positive
i nteractions fromofficers in their comunity, not
financial penalties. Every effort to positively
engage with young people serve to keep them out of
the crimnal justice system which inproves community
trust.

Unf ortunately, when youth get into
trouble, they face financial consequences. Juvenile

fees and fines, the cost in nonetary sanctions that
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are inposed on youths and their famlies for the
youth's involvenment in the juvenile delinquency
system actually operate as a regressive tax on the
famlies who can very |least afford it. These youths
and their famlies are charged a range of fees,
I ncluding for detention, probation, supervision, and
el ectronic monitoring. These juvenile fines and
fees are counterproductive actually. They come with
harsh penalties and ot her negative consequences for
nonpayment. They fill our courtrooms with famlies
who are there solely because they're unable to pay
the fines. The fact is these don't generate net
revenue because nost famlies with children in a
justice system are | ow i ncone.

As the statutory court fees report points
out, often there's little attenpt even made to
coll ect those fees; and since we realize that's the
case, what we should do is do away with those harsh
juvenile fees that keep children engaged with the
crimnal justice system which studies have shown
does lead to recidivism

And | astly, these fines and fees, they in
no way deter crime and, in fact, they increase it;

and they do that by pushing famlies further into
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poverty and force them to nmake deci sions between
payi ng the rent and feeding their famly or paying
fines and fees which in turn | eads to continued
interactions with the justice system |nplenenting
this initiative would elimnate fines and fees
| nposed on the Juvenile Court Act of 1987. States
fromevery region of the country are taking sim|lar
action to elimnate juvenile fees and fines. In
just this past year alone Louisiana, Virginia,
Col orado, New Mexi co, Texas, and New Hanpshire
elimnated juvenile fees and fines following in the
footsteps of California, Nevada, Mryl and, and
several other states. Illinois now has the
opportunity to join those states in a very nuch
commonsense bipartisan reform approach that w |
help Illinois youth and famlies.

| believe this initiative will also help
| nprove police community trust which is so key to
what's going on in this country. The police are
only as strong as our relationship with the public
because they prevent and solve crines, big and
smal |, based in |large part on the information from
victinms and witnesses. Victins won't report crinme

I f they don't believe in the system A recent
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report actually found out that nore than half, it's
m nd-blowing to me that nore than a half of al
vi ol ent crinmes went unreported between 2006 and 2010
in this country.

When people see that their famly is
wei ghed down by juvenile justice debt, who do they
bl ame? They blame the figure that they see, and
that's the police. They blane the police. And when
t hey blanme the police, they're not going to talk to
the police. And when they don't speak to us, crines
don't get reported, wtnesses don't conme forward.
As a result, all residents suffer.

| urge you to join me in supporting this
initiative to protect struggling famlies and
| nprove police community trust which will result in
a better Illinois for all of us. Thanks nuch for
t he opportunity to share nmy experience and support
of this bill. Be well.

MR. PFLAUM  Thank you, M. Gaughan.

Does anyone have any questions for
M . Gaughan?

Ckay. And thank you very much for very
hel pful testinmony.

VR. GAUGHAN: Thanks.
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MR. PFLAUM  Qur next speaker | believe
will be Deputy Public Defender Parle Roe-Taylor from
t he Cook County Public Defender's O fice.

Ms. Roe-Tayl or, wel cone.

MS. ROE- TAYLOR: Thank you. Thank you. |
appreciate the opportunity to provide comment to the
task force regarding the draft report today. As you
said, ny nane is Parle Roe-Taylor, and | am a deputy
public defender with the |aw office of the Cook
County Public Defender.

The office has and remains strongly in
support of all efforts to reduce the inpact of court
assessnments for our clients, and we are pl eased that
the task force is taking up and proposing solutions
to i nmplenent challenges to the Crimnal and Traffic
Assessnent Act. |'m here today to comment on the
| npl enment ati on proposals as well as to commend the
task force for their excellent work that you've done
so far and speak in favor of our recommendations and
the new initiatives detailed in the draft report and
hi ghli ght a few areas where our office believe that
t he recommendati ons could go further to address the
addi ti onal i ssues.

We are in agreenent that renoval of the
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sunset on and to continue to docunment the inpact of
the Crimnal and Traffic Assessnment Act. We

beli eve, as stated earlier by the Representative,
that there is no |longer a need for that and that it
I's our position that the collection of the
additional information will assist in evaluating the
| npact of the act; and that is one of the things
that we have all learned, that it is that data that
hel ps gui de the decisions that we make, and that
woul d be incredi bly hel pful for us to have. Moving
forward it remains essential that we're able to
better understand the assessnents of people who are
accused and how to bal ance the county budgets in
order for us to continue to do the work that we have
for each of the courts systens.

We are also of the opinion that we need to
cl ose the | oophol es that defeat the goals of the
Crimnal and Traffic Assessnent Act. |'ve been a
| awyer for nore than 30 years, | have handl ed
numerous matters in the court system and it is
al ways heart-wrenching when part of the negotiations
is how a client is going to pay the fees and the
costs associ ated, whether sonme are mandatory or

whet her sonme are actually part of the state's offer
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or a prosecutor's offer. For a client who stands
bef ore us indi gent where the assessnent has al ready
been made by the court that they are indigent and
now as part of whatever system-- sentence, |'m
sorry, they are responsible for, they now have this
financial burden.

Those types of instances are a work-around
for the act, and we have to make sure that those are
prohi bited nmoving forward. And so we commend the
task force on considering how to get rid of those
I nstances where people are not given an opportunity
just to pay the restitution and avoid court fines
and fees.

Anot her oppressive portion that we have to
consider are the |ate fees, and there was -- |
believe the Representative also tal ked about the
piling on and what that nmeans not just for the
traffic but also for our clients who | ose their jobs
because they were taken into custody. They fall
behi nd because of their inability to get back to
court, sometinmes to get to work because just the
financial burdens that they have, and the piling on
of these costs and these fees further digs a hole

for them that becomes inpossible to get out. And,

WWw.veritext.com

Veritext Lega Solutions

888-391-3376



© 00 N oo o A~ w N PP

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R R
A WO N P O ©O 0O N O O B W N +—» O

Page 45

yeah, sonetines they reoffend. A lot of times they
are trying to balance their famly's needs versus
t heir own.

We al so echo the testinony that cane
regarding the juvenile costs and fees as it relates
to not just those mnors but of course their
famlies. So many children are unable to get the
paper route that used to be available or to cut
grass or do those things where they could save sone
noney. They live in urban areas where they may j ust
not have access to those weekend or those jobs.

And certainly considering that there's
harm that is there working out restitution, we need
to be creative. W always need to be creative in
how to make a victim or conplaining witness whol e,
but we have to chall enge our imaginations of how to
do this. |I've seen sone very creative instances
where -- and | believe someone made the reference to
restorative justice court as well as sitting down
with a conplaining witness and asking them what can
we do in situations where there isn't great bodily
harm or ot her instances to nmake sure that you know
this juvenile will be rehabilitated and w |

contribute to what harm you suffered. So | think
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that we can do that. So | do -- we do echo the
positions that have been taken regarding juveniles
who find thenmsel ves burdened with these costs and
assessnents.

| would also like to address sone of the
ot her issues that we have with our clients who are
reentering the system who are sentenced to the
I1linois Departnment of Corrections who are al so
saddl ed with fees and costs when they return. |
t hink nostly everyone on this task force can
appreciate the difficulty that clients have in
reentering. Every programwon't take them Every
enpl oyer will not consider them Some of those
clients, a lot of those clients, have difficulty
getting jobs. Getting back into the workforce is
one of the main ways to even be able to support
t hemsel ves, and oftentimes because of the fel ony
convictions they are |ooking at fines that they're
responsi ble for, and they're | ooking for ways to pay
that and to take care of thensel ves.

It's an undue burden. They have just been
penalized in a systemthat sought to rehabilitate
them but the reality of that is that they are

unable to pay. They're unable to find jobs with
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| i veabl e wages such that they can pay off the

t housands of dollars that have been assessed agai nst
them And it is shocking to see as you sit in
court, and as | have, when you just hear the judges
and the prosecutors say, well, the agreenent is

$10, 000 that's being assessed or $25,000 know ng
that that client beconmes nore unenpl oyable the

| onger they stay in prison.

And then when they are rel eased, sonehow
there's this expectation that they begin to pay, and
often | have sat through hearings where there have
been findings that the person is unwilling to pay
because they did not get a job even if they can show
the log that they went to several different places.
So we commend you on the consideration that those
not be part of agreenments by the prosecution and the
defense in plea agreenents.

| also want to raise just one other major
| ssue for us, and that is the cost that is actually
| egi sl ated, on the books, regarding the
rei mbursement of the public defender's office; and
while it is not inposed, it is still in existence.
And this is very contrary to the court who has made

t he assessnment and the finding that the person is
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I ndigent; and in a felony case they can be

responsi ble for up to $5,000 of our services. Wen
there's a finding absent sonme | ater show ng that
this person has the ability to pay is very

I nconsistent with the court's original finding of

I ndi gence for the purpose of appointing a | awer
fromour office. Because of this inconsistency and
no showi ng that this person has any ability after
the case is conplete, it is just another |ayer of a
burden pl aced upon our clients.

Most of our revenue comes from ot her
agencies, right, and the state. And a |ot of our
clients are taxpayers. Their noney is being spent
even for the prosecution of their own cases, but
then to try to tack it on at the very end after that
matter is conplete if they are not successful is
al nost |like a double tax for themto now have to pay
back into the system for the use of a systemthat
they were being -- that they were seeking justice
I n.

So we commend you for the consideration of
elimnating and we would ask the task force to
propose elimnating that particular section of the

| egi sl ation as our clients are being, again, unduly
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burdened with the cost of our services when they
have al ready been found to be entitled to our
servi ces.

So | would like to thank you for the
opportunity to be heard today and for all of your
work as proposed in the draft report. Thank you.

MR. PFLAUM  Thank you, Ms. Roe-Tayl or.

Does anyone have any question?

Chi rag Badl ani, go ahead.

MR. BADLANI: Ms. Roe-Tayl or, thank you
for your testinony today and for the public
defender's wwitten comments as well. One just
guestion of clarification on the reimbursenment
| egislation. | believe | caught you said that it's
not inposed. |Is that just a policy in Cook County,
or are you aware of sonme state-w de policy regarding
the lack of enactnment of that or enforcement of that
| egi sl ation?

MS. ROE- TAYLOR: So Cook has inposed that
provision fromtime to tinme, not currently, but it
has happened under a previous public defender. It
is a very difficult position to be in. Certainly
it's not a position even when it was happeni ng that

we were making that proposal to our clients or
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advising them it was actually that the state was
telling or the judge was telling our client that
t hey woul d be seeking reimbursement and that notice
had to be given at the tinme that we were resol ving
t he case.

Was it happening at other jurisdictions?
| don't have the data on that, but | know that as
| ong as that piece of legislation sits there, it can
be i nposed. So while it is currently not a
practice, | have no reason to think that it wll not
rear its head again and be pushed as a revenue
streamto come fromour office because we are the
ones that are the least likely to be able to have a
revenue stream comng fromthe services that we
provide to indigent clients.

MR. BADLANI : Thank you.

MR. PFLAUM  Any ot her questions?

MR. FIELLO. Yeah, | wanted to follow up.

MR. PFLAUM Judge Fiello.

MR. FIELLO: | think this is inposed in
ot her counties. |In fact, it's inposed in ny county.
And | know it's not in Cook County right now, but
fromyour testinony it sounds |ike you' ve been there

quite some tinme so you may have sonme information
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about when it was.

So ny question to you is, if you know,
when it was being inposed, how often was this
assessed agai nst defendants, whether those
assessnments were paid and when they -- if they were
pai d, where did the noney cone fron? |In other
words, did it -- was it assessed and taken out of
maybe bond that the person had put up or was there
sonme proceedi ngs after the case was over to coll ect
it?

And finally, it doesn't sound like the
public defender's office relied on this as a revenue
stream so |'m guessing -- but you can correct ne if
l'mwong -- that not, not having the ability for
this to be assessed is not going to hanper the
ability of the public defender to do their job.

MS. ROE-TAYLOR: So I'Il try to take that
in parts. Please remind nme if | mss any of those
questi ons.

So | can tell you that the inposition of
t he paynent was not as often because, as you can
i magi ne, some judges recognize that the additional
burden placed on, you know, a person before them

woul d be just buried and in debt. So often -- and
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there were sonme fundanental objections that were

bei ng made, and judges would often say |I'm not going
to assess, even though |I can, I'mnot going to do it
because this is a m sdeneanor case. You know, it's
$500. There's no way that you'll be able to pay
that in addition to all the other things. So even
where the request was made by the prosecutor, judges
woul d actually go on the record and say |I'm not
going to inpose that at this tine.

|'ve never seen a full collection though
there was an order often that it be paid if that
client had posted bond. And the schedul e was never
very clear, but a portion of it was paid, and then
they were told you need to pay that anount and the
clerk's office would be the designated place for it
to go into the bucket and to be spread about; and
It's not even that our office was getting it in
total. And oftentinmes it had to be witten in on a
| ot of orders because it was not standard.

| think you al so asked about -- oh, |I'm
sorry, if you can remind me, M. Fiello.

MR. FIELLO. The only other thing that |
mentioned, | think you' ve covered all the points

that | asked, which are they weren't assessed often;

WWw.veritext.com

Veritext Lega Solutions

888-391-3376



© 00 N oo o A~ w N PP

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R R
A WO N P O ©O 0O N O O B W N +—» O

Page 53

If they were paid, they were paid out of the bond
noney normally and there wasn't -- at |east you
didn't experience any sort of post case collection
efforts.

MS. ROE- TAYLOR: No, we did not. W
had -- there was so nmuch confusion when it did
happen. There were sone clients who actually sent
checks to our office. W had to certainly get those
right over to the clerk's office so that those
coul d, you know, be given agai nst whatever the debt
was. But no, there was no huge influx that affected
our budget so we could hire nore people or that we
coul d, you know, get nobre resources and then it went
away.

So we have enjoyed the fact that that no
| onger is a practice, but we do live in fear that it
could rear its head again. And | feel very bad for
you that it is in your jurisdiction because it is
such an inconsistent message to the person who's
bei ng appointed a | awer for our office; and then
once they get their case resolved, they're being
told, oh, yeah, by the way, that free | awer isn't
really free. You're going to have to pay a portion

of their salary for their services. It is
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unfortunate.

MR. FIELLO.  Thank you.

MS. ROE- TAYLOR: Thank you.

MR. PFLAUM Does anyone have nore
guestions?

Agai n, thank you, Ms. Roe-Taylor, both for
your testinony today and also for the very careful
coments that you and your office submtted, the
witten comments, which were also very val uable.
Thank you for that.

MS. ROE- TAYLOR: Thank you.

MR. PFLAUM  Qur next speaker this norning
s Ainmee Gal vin.

Ms. Galvin, | have you identified as with
the |1 SBA although I realized you're, | believe, with
an organi zation called Stand for Children. So
wel cone, and the floor is yours.

MS. GALVIN: Thank you so nmuch. And yes,
| amwth Stand for Children, and |I'm speaking on
behal f of Stand and the Debt Free Justice Illinois
coal ition.

So thank you, Chairman Pflaum and nmembers
of the Statutory Court Fee Task Force, for hol ding

this hearing to gather public coments on the task
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force draft report. As | said, nmy nane is Ainee
Galvin, and I'mthe governnent affairs director with
Stand for Children Illinois.

Stand for Children Illinois is a nonprofit
t hat advocates for educational equity and raci al
justice to create a better future for us all. As a
menmber of the Debt Free Justice Illinois coalition,
Stand is commtted to elimnating harnful and
econom cally unjust fees and fines inmposed on youth
and their famlies in the juvenile justice system
Juvenile court fees and fines underm ne youths'
success by perpetuating cycles of debt and can
prolong a child's involvenent with the justice
system further delaying plans |ike coll ege and
career, and | think we have heard a | ot of
testinony, you know, to that effect today.

Stand for Children Illinois and the Debt
Free Justice Illinois coalition strongly support the
task force's findings and recommendati ons under New
Initiative 3 that calls for |egislation abolishing
assessnments and fines in juvenile delinquency cases.
Debt Free Justice Illinois is part of a national
novenent that has brought together organizations

fromacross the political spectrumto end the
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harnful practice of juvenile fines and fees. Since
2015, twenty states have reduced or elim nated
juvenile fines and fees, and it's time for Illinois
to do the sane.

Debt Free Justice Illinois is proudly
bi parti san and enjoys support from groups that stand
on both sides of the political line and spectrum as
wel | as support froma w de variety of stakehol ders
I ncl udi ng judges, state's attorneys, probation
officials, youth correction officers, and | aw
enforcement | eaders that have joined us in our call
to end juvenile fines and fees.

Thank you to the task force for
recommendi ng that the General Assenbly pass
| egi sl ati on substantively in the formof SB 3621
whi ch, as we've covered today, will elimnate al
juvenile fines and fees in delinquency cases. This
bill will take Illinois one step closer to achieving
a nore just and rehabilitative system for young
people in our state. W strongly support the task
force's recommendati on and encourage the General
Assenbly to enact that legislation in the form of
SB 3621.

So thank you so much.
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MR. PFLAUM Thank you, Ms. Gal vin. And
t hank you also for the written comments that were
subm tted on behalf of the coalition.

Does anyone have questions for Ms. Galvin?

Ckay. Thanks again for being here this
mor ni ng.

Qur |l ast schedul ed speaker is CJ Beck from
t he Chi cago Appl eseed Center.

Good norning, M. Beck.

MR. BECK: Good norning. Thank you very
much. So hel |l o. My name is CJ Beck, and |'m here
t oday on behal f of Chicago Appl eseed Center for Fair
Courts. The Chicago Appleseed is a nonprofit that
seeks equitable and fair solutions to system ¢
i njustices in Illinois' courts and crimnal |ega
system

So |'m here today in support of the
recomendati ons made in the Illinois Statutory Court
Fee Task Force drafted report. The issue of
reduci ng court fines and fees are of particular
I nportance to the Chicago Appl eseed because fines
and fees perpetuate inequality as opposed to serving
justice.

Court fines and fees construct a cycle of
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debt as punishment for people in the court system
di sproportionately inpacting |ow i ncome people and
communities of color. For exanple, a 2017 study by
t he Fines and Fees Justice Center found that on
average nonetary punishnment increases by $34, 864 per
100, 000 residents for every 1 percent increase in
t he Bl ack popul ation. Moreover, collection of these
debts are generally inefficient and do not
contribute to significant portion of funding towards
the court system The recommendati ons that the task
force have made m nim ze the burden of | egal
financial obligations on individuals in Illinois,
and are undoubtedly a step in the right direction.

| would |ike to enphasize that the
Crimnal and Traffic Assessnment Act passed in 2019
was a significant step forward for creating a nore
just Illinois court system The CTAA has hel ped --
has created sonme clarity in court costs and fees for
court staff as well as litigants and has hel ped
m nimze the cost burden on individuals and
famlies. Therefore, we strongly support the
elimnation of the sunset day of January 1st,
2024. Term nation of the provisions in this |aw

woul d effectively undercut substantial efforts to
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nove the courts towards greater progress and
di spensation of equitable justice.

While there were many i nmportant
recommendations in the report from standardi zi ng
procedures for assessment waiver applications to
| nproved data reporting, | would |ike to highlight
two initiatives that are critical to creating a nore
equi table court system These initiatives are
assessnents and fines in juvenile delinquency cases
and assessnments and fines inposed on defendants
sentenced to the departnent of corrections.

Chi cago Appl eseed supports the task force
recomendati on to abolish assessnments and fees in
juvenil e delinquency cases because youth are rarely
| ndependently able to pay these fines and fees and
the burden falls on their famlies. As
fundamentally shown in the proposal of SB 3621,
assessing fines and fees for juveniles and their
famlies underm nes the rehabilitative enphasis of
t he Juvenile Court Act of 1987. Furt hernore, these
f ees conpound youth hardship by doing nothing to
address the root issues that influence youth towards
comng into contact with the | egal system Failure

to pay these fines and fees create barriers to
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reentry such as harm ng the young person's credit
and limting their eligibility for student | oans,
rental | eases, or car | oans.

What is proven to be nost effective for
kids and their famlies is providing resources to
ameliorate the challenges that | ead to system
I nvol venment. Support for SB 3621 is fully in line
with the Illinois Department of Child and Fam |y
Services Famly First Prevention Act that provides
conprehensive services to famlies to limt youth
| egal systeminvol venent. As such, we at Chicago
Appl eseed urge stakehol ders to voice support for
this act.

Simlarly, the task force reconmmendati on
to create a sliding scale of fees for people who
have been sentenced to the departnent of corrections
Is a point of progress. However, we inplore the
task force to go further and abolish fees for people
sentenced to I DOC regardl ess of how |l ong they w ||
be i ncarcerated because court costs can act as a
significant barrier to reentry fromincarceration.
| ncorporating the findings fromthis fines and fees
task force, the Illinois Crimnal Justice

| nformati on Authority research and analysis unit
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di spl ays the coll ateral consequences of fines and
fees inposed on this popul ation which can anount to
i ndi vi dual s foregoi ng basic needs such as groceries,
utilities, rent, anong others. Inability to pay
fines considering that the average annual salary for
t hi s popul ati on ampbunt to $15,000 also led to nmore
than half of the individuals surveyed in the report
saying that it negatively inmpacted their credit.
Credit issues can lead to eligibility chall enges as
far as | oans, education, and housing, as previously
st at ed.

We strongly encourage robust push beyond
sliding scale nethodol ogy towards elim nation of
fees for IDOC-involved individuals to support
reentry into their communities. Research in a
variety of systenms denonstrates that fines and fees
do not create a significant source of revenue for
court systenms or the counties where they are seated.
The key 2019 study fromthe Brennan Center called
fines and fees an inefficient source of governnent
revenue citing costs of collection, diversion of
resources fromcore responsibilities to collection
efforts, and costs of inposing sanctions on those

who remain unable to pay. While the prospect of
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| ost revenue is generally unappealing, collecting
nonet ary sanctions has consi derable and wi dely

di stributed costs for the court system and usually
results in spending dollars to collect pennies. The
Brennan Center study found that 10 U S. court
jurisdictions spent on average 41 cents for every
dollar they collected. Profit fromcourt fees is so
| ow t hat reducing court fees would not have a
significant inpact on the court's revenue.

So in sum the report makes significant
headway in reducing the anount of court fees and is
an i nmportant step towards a fully taxpayer-funded
court systemin Illinois that will elimnate court
costs and fees entirely.

Want to thank you for your tinme and work
on this report and thank you for allowing ne to
speak this norning.

MR. PFLAUM Thank you, M. Beck.

Does anyone have any questions that they
wi sh to pose to M. Beck?

Chi rag Badl ani .

MR. BADLANI: | have a question. | don't
know, M. Beck, if you're poised to answer this, or

maybe Ms. Jimenez who spoke earlier, but there's
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been obviously a | ot of testinmny today on SB 3621,
and | just want to understand the Publico
i nvestigation regarding nmunicipal fines and fees
that are inposed. 1Is the thinking, M. Jinenez or
others on the -- at this hearing who have testified
to this issue, that SB -- that bill potentially
m ght be amended to include this or would there be
sort of separate legislation that is contenpl ated?
| think I m ssed that point that was raised earlier.

MS. JI MENEZ: Yeah, no, thank you for
raising that. W have been working with the Debt
Free Justice Illinois coalition which some of the
i ndi vidual s testifying today on and really trying to
raise this issue. \When the bill, the | anguage was
originally drafted and introduced, this was really
before a ot of the investigation, the series canme
out that was published in April of this year. So
really we are working -- we're working with themto
potentially include that within that bill, within
Senate Bill 3621. The nunber may change as the --
in the new session. But that is our intention and
t hat has been our conversations.

If that is sonmething that would not be

successful, because we are commtted to doing this
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and we are commtted to moving this forward, it's
possi ble that it could be introduced as a separate
bill, but the hope was to really include this as
part of a part of conprehensive juvenile justice
reformand really identifying that for the youth.
Because we are speaking to this specifically to
youth. Right? W are not speaking to mnunici pal
ordi nance viol ati ons agai nst adults.

So that is our intention, to do that going
forward, and we are hoping to have the support from
the task force today on that. So really that's why
we were here today and that's why we were -- that's
our original intention, but our strategy would be to
have this introduced in this |egislature. \Whether
it's part of that bill or a separate bill, that we
are still working on at this point.

MR. BADLANI: Thank you for that
clarification.

MR. PFLAUM  Thank you.

Any ot her questions for Ms. Jinmenez or
M . Beck?

Again, M. Beck, |I want to thank you both
for your testinony today and for the witten

comments that were submtted by the Chicago
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Appl eseed Center. We appreciate all of that.

That wraps up. That's our |ast speaker,
schedul ed speaker for this nmorning, and | want to
again thank all of our speakers for taking the tine
to appear this norning and to share their views and
their experience with us. You know, the task force
collectively has very broad experience, but we have
no claimthat our know edge and experience is
encyclopedic, and it's invaluable to hear from
menbers of the public who can suppl ement our
experience with their own and share their views with
us. So we appreciate your tinme and we appreciate
your efforts and assistance in the inportant work of
our task force.

At this point the public hearing will be
adj ourned. The neetings of the task force wll
reconvene to consider the witten and oral testinony
and to further act on our draft report.

Al'i son Spanner, do we have a separate Zoom
| ink for our neeting, or are we to stay on this
particul ar Zoonf

MS. SPANNER: We will stay on this Zoom

MR. PFLAUM Ckay. So the public hearing

wi |l now be adjourned. The live stream can be
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stopped. Anyone on the Zoom who is not a task force
partici pant, again, thank you and now woul d be a
good time to sign off.

(WHEREUPON, at 10:24 A.M the

public hearing was concl uded.)
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public hearing, as aforesaid, and that the foregoing
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Illinois Code of Civil Procedure
Article II, Part E

Rule 207, Signing and Filing Depositions

Signing and Filing Depositions

(a) Submission to Deponent; Changes; Signing.
Unless signature is waived by the deponent, the
officer shall instruct the deponent that if the
testimony 1s transcribed the deponent will be
afforded an opportunity to examine the deposition
at the office of the officer or reporter, or
elsewhere, by reasonable arrangement at the
deponent's expense, and that corrections based on
errors 1in reporting or transcription which the
deponent desires to make will be entered upon the
deposition with a statement by the deponent that
the reporter erred in reporting or transcribing the
answer or answers involved. The deponent may not
otherwise change either the form or substance of
his or her answers. The deponent shall provide the
officer with an electronic or physical address to
which notice is to be sent when the transcript is
available for examination and signing. When the
deposition is fully transcribed, the officer shall

deliver to the deponent, at the address supplied,




notice that it is available and may be examined at
a stated place at stated times, or pursuant to
arrangement. After the deponent has examined the
deposition, the officer shall enter upon it any
changes the deponent desires to make, with the
reasons the deponent gives for making them. If

the deponent does not appear at the place specified
in the notice within 28 days after the mailing of
the notice, or within the same 28 days make other
arrangements for examination of the deposition, or
after examining the deposition refuses to sign it,
or after it has been made available to the deponent
by arrangement it remains unsigned for 28 days, the
officer's certificate shall state the reason for
the omission of the signature, including any reason
given by the deponent for a refusal to sign. The
deposition may then be used as fully as though
signed, unless on a motion to suppress under Rule
211 (d) the court holds that the reasons given by
the deponent for a refusal to sign require

rejection of the deposition in whole or in part.

(b) Certification, Filing, and Notice of Filing.

(1) If the testimony is transcribed, the officer




shall certify within the deposition transcript that
the deponent was duly sworn by the officer and that
the deposition is a true record of the testimony
given by the deponent. A deposition so certified
requires no further proof of authenticity

(2) Deposition transcripts shall not be filed with
the clerk of the court as a matter of course. The
party filing a deposition shall promptly serve
notice thereof on the other parties and shall

file the transcript and any exhibits in the

form and manner specified by local rule.

DISCLAIMER: THE FOREGOING CIVIL PROCEDURE RULES
ARE PROVIDED FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY.

THE ABOVE RULES ARE CURRENT AS OF APRIL 1,

2019. PLEASE REFER TO THE APPLICABLE STATE RULES

OF CIVIL PROCEDURE FOR UP-TO-DATE INFORMATION.




VERITEXT LEGAL SOLUTIONS
COMPANY CERTIFICATE AND DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

Veritext Legal Solutions represents that the
foregoing transcript is a true, correct and complete
transcript of the colloquies, questions and answers
as submitted by the court reporter. Veritext Legal
Solutions further represents that the attached
exhibits, if any, are true, correct and complete
documents as submitted by the court reporter and/or
attorneys in relation to this deposition and that
the documents were processed in accordance with

our litigation support and production standards.

Veritext Legal Solutions is committed to maintaining
the confidentiality of client and witness information,
in accordance with the regulations promulgated under
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability
Act (HIPAA), as amended with respect to protected
health information and the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, as
amended, with respect to Personally Identifiable
Information (PII). Physical transcripts and exhibits
are managed under strict facility and personnel access
controls. Electronic files of documents are stored

in encrypted form and are transmitted in an encrypted
fashion to authenticated parties who are permitted to
access the material. Our data is hosted in a Tier 4
SSAE 16 certified facility.

Veritext Legal Solutions complies with all federal and
State regulations with respect to the provision of
court reporting services, and maintains its neutrality
and independence regardless of relationship or the
financial outcome of any litigation. Veritext requires
adherence to the foregoing professional and ethical
standards from all of its subcontractors in their
independent contractor agreements.

Inquiries about Veritext Legal Solutions'
confidentiality and security policies and practices
should be directed to Veritext's Client Services
Associates indicated on the cover of this document or
at www.veritext.com.
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